2006

Jerald F. Jensen v. Lujean Jensen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to the provisions of Rules 3 and 4 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure and Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(h)(2004).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

ISSUE NO. 1.

Whether the Court erred as a matter of law in not finding that Ms. Jensen had cohabitated with her boyfriend in Las Vegas when she testified that her intent in moving in with him was to establish a marital type relationship for an indefinite length of time?

STANDARD OF REVIEW: Whether Ms. Jensen was residing with her boyfriend is a mixed question of fact and law. While this court defers to the trial court's factual findings unless they are clearly erroneous, this court review its ultimate conclusion for

correctness. *Pendleton v. Pendleton*, 918 P.2d 159, 160 (Utah Ct. App. 1996) (citations omitted.).

PRESERVATION OF ISSUE NO. 1: Page 21, lines 4-12 of Ms. Jensen's deposition (p. 242 of Trial Record) and the Court's Memorandum Decision dated April 27, 2006 (p. 300 - 310 of the Trial Record).

ISSUE NO. 2.

Whether the court erred in reallocating the property that was already divided at the time of the divorce to force Mr. Jensen to continue to pay alimony after the source of income used for alimony at the trial terminated?

STANDARD OF REVIEW: A trial court has considerable discretion to adjust divorcing parties' finances and property interests in modifications of an earlier decree. Such action is entitled to a presumption of validity that will only be altered upon showing clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion. *Throckmorton v. Throckmorton*, 767 P.2d 121, 122, 123 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

PRESERVATION OF ISSUE NO. 2: The Court's Memorandum Decision dated April 27, 2006 (p. 300 - 310 of the Trial Record).

ISSUE NO. 3.

Whether the court erred in failing to require Ms. Jensen to prove by medical evidence her inability to work and to become employable which was established at trial by medical evidence thus switching the burden of proof to Mr. Jensen to prove Ms. Jensen's ability with the help of therapy to become gainfully employed?

STANDARD OF REVIEW: A trial court's finding that is devoid of evidentiary support constitutes an abuse of discretion. *McCrary v. McCrary*, 599 P.2d 1248, 1250 (Utah 1979).

PRESERVATION OF ISSUE NO. 3: The Court's Memorandum Decision dated April 27, 2006 (p. 300 - 310 of the Trial Record).

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL/STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Utah Code Annotated §30-3-5(10), set forth in addendum

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case/Course of Proceedings.

Appellant, Gerald F. Jensen (Mr. Jensen), and Appellee, LuJean G. Jensen (Ms. Jensen), were divorced on April 11, 1997, after a day long trial before Judge Gordon J. Low. Their only two children had reached majority so after granting the divorce and dividing the marital property and debts, the trial court set an alimony award of \$2,150.00 per month based on one-half of Mr. Jensen's net income from his employment at Thiokol. Based on the testimony of two psychologists, Ms. Jensen was found incapable of earning money and had no earnings imputed to her for the purposes of alimony, but the court specifically reserved the issue of a modification of the alimony once she obtained employment without the normal requirement of proving a substantial change of circumstances. The trial court also noted that she would need therapy in order to become employable.

In addition, as part of the Decree of Divorce, the court found that farming operations, which Mr. Jensen had inherited from his father and shared with family members, was non-marital but the net rent that he received from the property would be paid to Ms. Jensen. That property was sold several years after the divorce, so that income terminated and no further action was taken by Ms. Jensen in regards to the non-payment of that money.

On January 16, 2004, Mr. Jensen filed a Petition to Modify the Decree seeking to terminate alimony because he had reached the age of 65 and had retired from Thiokol. His income had, thus, ended upon which the alimony award was originally based.

During the course of preparing for trial, the deposition of Ms. Jensen was taken and it was discovered that for just short of a year (approximately four years after their marriage ended) she had gone to Las Vegas to live. While there, she became a friend with a man and lived with him in his apartment for a time period. She acknowledged that sexual relations occurred, that they had contemplated marriage, and that she had given him a bulk of her retirement money for the purpose of acquiring a home together. They lived together for at least two months and then she became suspicious of him, so she terminated the relationship and had him sign a promissory note to repay the \$49,000 she had advanced for the home.

At the trial, the court found that the circumstances of living together was not enough to prove residency and refused to terminate alimony. The court further ordered Mr. Jensen to use his assets and income he had received in the divorce settlement (which

are premarital, divided marital, and/or post marital assets) to continue to pay alimony at \$1,500.00 a month. The court accepted Ms. Jensen's testimony without medical support that even though she had not taken any therapy contemplated at the time of the divorce, she was still incapable of working and again imputed no earnings to her. At the conclusion of the trial, the court took the matter under advisement and issued its Memorandum Decision dated April 27, 2006. An Order was issued by the trial court on June 12, 2006. This is an appeal from said Memorandum Decision and Order.

Statement of Facts.

1. The parties were divorced on April 11, 1997 after a day long trial before Judge Gordon J. Low. (See Decree of Divorce - pp 90-95 of Trial Record.)

2. The only issues before the trial court were granting the divorce, dividing marital property and debts, and awarding alimony and attorney fees. (See Findings of Fact - pp 83-89 of Trial Record.)

3. At the time of the divorce, the trial court found certain assets which the Mr. Jensen had inherited from his family to be non-marital which were awarded free and clear to Mr. Jensen, and the rest of the assets were divided equally including Mr. Jensen's ESIP at Thiokol (now known as ATK) and his defined benefit pension program under the Woodward formula and their equity in the family home. (See Findings of Fact - pp 83-89 of Trial Record.)

4. Mr. Jensen's net income at Thiokol was equally divided between the parties as an ongoing alimony award of \$2,150.00 per month, plus Ms. Jensen was given one-half

of the net proceeds from the farm land rental income. (See paragraph 13 of Findings of Fact - p. 87 of Trial Record.) This farm land was found to be non-marital and received by Mr. Jensen jointly with other family members by way of inheritance. (See paragraph 10 of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law - p. 80 of Trial Record.) The farm property was sold several years after the divorce and the rental income then terminated as well as any payments to Ms. Jensen.

5. The court found Ms. Jensen was not capable of working at that time because of mental issues based on the testimony of Mr. Thomas Beasley (her psychologist) and the written report of an evaluation conducted by Dr. Van Uitert (see paragraph 8 of Findings of Fact - p. 85 of Trial Record) and in need of therapy. The court reserved jurisdiction to review the alimony should Mrs. Jensen become employed (see paragraph 13 of Findings of Fact – p. 87 of Trial Record).

6. On January 16, 2004, Mr. Jensen filed a petition to modify the decree by terminating alimony, because he had reached the age of 65 and retired from Thiokol (see Verified Petition, pp. 104-105 of Trial Record). This retirement was not only because of his age but because of a special benefit that Thiokol had that if Mr. Jensen retired at that time, he could continue his health insurance coverage. If he delayed retirement past age 65, that benefit would not be available. Mr. Jensen had suffered two heart attacks and was diagnosed with diabetes since the divorce which made his continued health insurance coverage very important. (See Trial Transcript – p.45, lines 1-6; p. 48, lines 21-25; p. 49, lines 1-11, p.348 of Trial Record.)

7. With this retirement, his salary at Thiokol ended and hence the source of the money to pay alimony was gone.

8. During the preparation for the trial, Ms. Jensen's deposition was taken and the circumstances of her leaving her home in Brigham City and living in Las Vegas for about one year in 2000 revealed the following:

A) She moved for almost a year to Las Vegas about three years after the divorce to reestablish her life there. See Ms. Jensen's deposition, page 8, lines 15-20. (p. 222 of Trial Record); page 9, lines 2-4 (page 224 of Trial Record); page 10, lines 21-22 (p. 225 of Trial Record).

B) During the time she was there, she became acquainted with a man whom she knew for about six months. See page 16, lines 17-21 (p. 235 of Trial Record).

C) She moved into his apartment with what personal property she had and they lived together so he could get to know her better. See page 21, lines 4-12 (p. 242 of Trial Record).

D) During this time, she gave him \$49,000 so they could build a home together. See page 26, lines 6-10 (p. 24 of Trial Record).

E) They discussed marriage. See page 17, lines 1-5 (p. 236 of Trial Record); page 23, lines 17-20 (p. 244 of Trial Record); page 32, lines 20-23 (p. 253 of Trial Record).

F) They engaged in sexual relations. See page 18, lines 1-2 (p. 238 of Trial Record).

G) They lived together for three (3) months. See page 18, lines 6-9 of Ms. Jensen's corrections (p. 238 of Trial Record).

9. At trial, Ms. Jensen testified that she had not been to therapy as found needed by the court at the original trial (see paragraph 13 of Findings of Fact, p.87 of Trial Record) and claimed to still not be able to work but presented no medical testimony to substantiate this claim.

10. The court ordered alimony to continue at \$1,500.00 per month requiring Mr. Jensen to use premarital, previously divided marital, and post marital moneys to pay for this obligation.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The trial court erred as a matter of law in not finding Ms. Jensen had cohabitated with her boyfriend in Las Vegas when she testified that her intent in moving in with him was to establish a marital type relationship for an indefinite length of time.

2. The trial court erred in reallocating the property that was already divided at the time of the divorce to force Mr. Jensen to continue to pay alimony after the source of income used for alimony at the trial terminated.

3. The court erred in failing to require Ms. Jensen to prove by medical evidence her inability to work and to become employable which was established at trial by medical evidence thus switching the burden of proof to Mr. Jensen to prove Ms. Jensen's ability with the help of therapy to become gainfully employed.

ARGUMENT

- I. THE COURT ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW IN NOT FINDING MS. JENSEN HAD COHABITATED WITH HER BOYFRIEND IN LAS VEGAS WHEN SHE TESTIFIED THAT HER INTENT IN MOVING IN WITH HIM WAS TO ESTABLISH A MARITAL TYPE RELATIONSHIP FOR AN INDEFINITE LENGTH OF TIME.

Utah law is clear that cohabitation terminates alimony. (See *Utah Code Ann.* §30-3-5 (10) 1953 as amended). Cohabitation is defined by case law as a common residency and sexual contact involving a conjugal association. *Haddow v. Haddow*, 707 P.2d 669 (Utah 1985). “Common residency means the sharing of a common abode that both parties consider their principal domicile for more than a temporary or brief period of time.” See *Haddow* at p. 673.

Residing is an issue of intent of Ms. Jensen at the time she moved in with her boyfriend. Once residency is established, a change in that status by a change in intent does not alter the fact that cohabitation has occurred. It is just like a marriage. The fact one change their mind shortly after the ceremony does not undo the fact that they intended to get married and in fact are, so they are bound by the legal consequences of that intent and action.

Because cohabitation is generally either openly denied or not admitted, leaving a challenging position for the spouse paying alimony to secure its termination as provided by law, courts must generally rely on specific objective facts to determine if the burden of proof has been met to show that specific intent and action have been established because of that denial or refusal to admit. This is a rare case where Ms. Jensen, not aware of the

potential issue, admitted during her sworn testimony in a deposition of her intent to take up residency with her boyfriend when she moved in with him. That was to live together to become better acquainted with marriage contemplated. She even gave him money to establish their own home together. The so called “loan agreement” was not prepared or signed until they had separated. Her intent and actions, when the relationship began, control. The court did not need to go any further in looking for objective facts as is commonly required. She did not need a key, so one was never requested or refused. She was never asked to share expenses in the apartment so she never paid any, but she did share other common expenses with her boyfriend away from his apartment by the use of her credit card. Her vacant home in Brigham City was about 600 miles away and was certainly not considered her living accommodations for that long period while she lived in Las Vegas where she had gone to find herself and start a new life. When sexual relations are added to this situation, “residency” within the meaning of *Utah Code Ann.* §30-3-5(10) 1953, was established about as permanent as any conjugal relation in today’s society can be.

The trial court focused too much on the “trees” by looking at the various objective factors created by appellate decisions, such as *Pendleton v. Pendleton*, 918 P.2d 159 (Utah Ct. App. 1996) and *Sigg vs. Sigg*, 905 P.2d 908 (Utah Ct. App. 1995) where the person receiving alimony either denies their intent to reside with another person or refuses to make any admissions. The trial court missed the “forest” that Ms. Jensen removed the need for analysis of such factors by her own sworn admission of her intent

when she moved in with her boyfriend as stated very clearly in her deposition before any issue of cohabitation was raised. She testified as to the events that occurred for the nine (9) months she lived in Las Vegas without guarding her testimony. Once the issue of cohabitation was raised by legal proceeding based on these admissions, she moved into the denial mode at trial, but it was too late. The truth was out. The first area the court should look is the admitted intent and once that shows residency without a temporary purpose, further analysis of objective factors is not necessary.

This court must follow the law that there are legal consequences for a person receiving alimony who moves in with another person with the intent of becoming “better acquainted”, contemplates marriage, admits to staying for at least two months, invests in a permanent home with the boyfriend, and engages in sexual relations while living together. The status of the case law currently focusing on the “trees” has made it very hard to terminate alimony for such conduct unless it is really blatant, because the “trees” can be carefully covered up. In this case, the “forest” was exposed before the “trees” could be hidden.

II. THE COURT ERRED IN REALLOCATING THE PROPERTY THAT WAS ALREADY DIVIDED AT THE TIME OF THE DIVORCE TO FORCE MR. JENSEN TO CONTINUE TO PAY ALIMONY AFTER THE SOURCE OF INCOME USED FOR ALIMONY AT THE TRIAL TERMINATED.

The law is clear that once marital property is divided, it is not re-divided without showing of fraud or gross misinterpretation at the time of trial. See *Throckmorton v. Throckmorton*, 767 P.2d 121 (Utah Ct. App. 1988). The court very clearly established alimony at the original trial as one-half of the net income Mr. Jensen was earning at his

employment. The other marital assets were equally divided. This implicitly means once that source is gone, through no fault of the payor, his duty to pay alimony also ends. That is what happened with the net rental from the farmland. Ms. Jensen raised no legal concerns when that source of money ended. It is like a case when the payor dies but leaves a sizable estate, for the court to order the estate to continue the alimony payments because the former spouse needs the money and the estate can afford to pay it. Further reallocation of Mr. Jensen's pre-marital, marital, and post marital assets should have been reserved at the original trial in the event the therapy needed did not succeed. That way Mr. Jensen would have known of his potential liability and could have tried to encourage Ms. Jensen to receive therapy and be more prudent with his money. The order instead contemplated that Ms. Jensen would obtain therapy and find employment, thus, reducing the pressure on Mr. Jensen to pay one-half of his earned income. Ms. Jensen can show no change of circumstances to justify claiming Mr. Jensen's separate property that was already fairly divided at the time of the divorce. She still is unemployed but chose not to enroll in therapy nor did she ever seek any employment. She squandered a major part of her share of the marital estate by giving it to her boyfriend to acquire a house for them. She is left with her remaining marital property, such as the family home which was not touched by the court as part of the "new division".

The court in the *Throckmorton* case clearly stresses that before the court can modify an existing property division order, there must be a substantial change of circumstances. There, the wife had gone from being employed to medically being unable

to work. Here, Ms. Jensen has not only stayed the same but testified she made no effort to undergo therapy or even find a job to improve her status. Also, the husband in the *Throckmorton* case had a new source of income to make the payments, that is his retirement that was not touched in the divorce decree. Mr. Jensen lost his source. His retirement was already divided and his potential Social Security benefit was known and she will share in his Social Security benefit when she qualifies in the future. The change is clearly to Mr. Jensen's ability to pay; hence, a reason to terminate alimony but Ms. Jensen remains the same, so there is no reason to give her more of his property in the form of alimony.

On the other hand, Mr. Jensen honored the order by faithfully paying alimony as long as his wages continued. He carefully invested his assets to be able to face a life after retirement and the loss of his regular income with his own challenging health needs. The court by going back and reallocating his property by requiring him to continue to pay alimony is rewarding Ms. Jensen for not doing what the court expected and for giving her money to a boyfriend and punishing Mr. Jensen for being frugal and careful in his investments to take care of his needs after retirement.

III. THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO REQUIRE MS. JENSEN TO PROVE BY MEDICAL EVIDENCE HER INABILITY TO WORK AND TO BECOME EMPLOYABLE WHICH WAS ESTABLISHED AT TRIAL BY MEDICAL EVIDENCE THUS SWITCHING THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO THE MR. JENSEN TO PROVE MS. JENSEN'S ABILITY WITH THE HELP OF THERAPY TO BECOME GAINFULLY EMPLOYED.

The law of this case set by competent medical evidence presented at the original trial to show Ms. Jensen at that time could not work but with therapy could become

employed, requires updated professional medical evidence to prove Ms. Jensen's continued inability to work. She comes back to the court ten years later and claims to not be employable but admits to not undergoing any therapy as recommended and thought to be helpful in the original trial. The court erred by in effect switching the burden of proof from Ms. Jensen to Mr. Jensen to present medical evidence of his ex-wife's inability to respond to therapy and find gainful employment by accepting her self-serving statements as sufficient evidence of her continued disability without medical support. They have been divorced for ten years and had little contact, so Mr. Jensen does not know what she has done to become employable. Ms. Jensen has a duty to mitigate her lack of income or to prove it by greater evidence than merely her word.

CONCLUSION

The law in Utah is clear that a person receiving alimony has that right terminated when they choose to reside with a boyfriend and engage in sexual relations which she certainly intended and did for a number of months in Las Vegas. Mr. Jensen should not be forced to use up his limited resources that he has carefully set aside for his retirement after his recent medical challenges to continue to pay an ex-wife, who has not only failed to take steps to improve her ability to support herself but foolishly gave the bulk of her liquid assets to this boyfriend. The trial court should have required Ms. Jensen to carry her burden of proof with competent medical testimony of her continued inability to work after undergoing the recommended therapy.