2006

Jerald F. Jensen v. Lujean Jensen : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction over this proceeding pursuant to U.C.A. 78-2a-3(2)(h) and pursuant to Rules 3 and 4 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

ISSUE NO. 1

Whether the Court erred as a matter of law as to whether or not the Petitioner's evidence established that the Respondent cohabitated for a short period of time in Las Vegas, Nevada in the spring or summer of 2000.

STANDARD OF REVIEW: Whether or not the Respondent cohabitated in 2000 is a mixed question of law and fact and while this Court defers to the trial court's factual

findings unless they are clearly erroneous, this Court reviews its ultimate conclusion for correctness. Pendleton v. Pendleton, 918 P.2d 159 (Utah App. 1996)

ISSUE NO. 2

Whether the Court erred in modifying the decree of divorce reducing the alimony award from \$2150.00 to \$1500.00.

STANDARD OF REVIEW: A trial court has considerable discretion to adjust an award of alimony should there be a material change in circumstances of the parties from the time the original decree of divorce was entered. Such modification is entitled to a presumption of validity that will only be altered upon a showing of clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion by the trial court. Throckmorton v. Throckmorton, 767 P.2d 121 (Utah App. 1988) .

ISSUE NO. 3

Whether or not the court erred in determining that the Respondent was still unable to work from the testimony presented.

STANDARD OF REVIEW: The moving party in order to secure change in alimony must allege and prove changed conditions arising since entry of original decree and the trial court is vested with considerable discretion in determining amount of alimony appropriate in given case, and will be upheld unless clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion is shown. Bridenbaugh v. Bridenbaugh , 786 P.2d 241 (Utah App.,1990).

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL / STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Utah Code Annotated 30-3-5 (7) (10) as set forth in Addendum of Appellant.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Proceedings

The appellant Jerald Jensen on January 16, 2004 filed a petition to modify the party's decree of divorce seeking to terminate his monthly alimony payments of \$2150.00 based upon his early retirement from Thiokol despite the fact he was receiving both his retirement and social security benefits.

The appellant on or about December 5, 2005 filed an amended petition to modify seeking to terminate his monthly alimony payments based upon alleged cohabitation of respondent in the spring and summer of 2000.

Neither Appellant's Petition to Modify or his subsequent Amended Petition to Modify alleged or contended that Respondent had been employed since entry of the parties decree of divorce of April 11, 1997 or that she was now employable based upon improvements to Respondent's physical and mental status.

The matter came on regularly for trial on April 12, 2006 before the Honorable Gordon J. Low who took the matter under advisement and thereafter issued a Memorandum Decision on April 27, 2006.

The court below in its memorandum decision considered at length (1) the issue of cohabitation and (2) the issues related to the appellant's economic situation as well as the Respondent's economic situation and her physical and mental difficulties and determined her condition was worse now than at the time of the 1997 divorce proceeding.

Thereafter, Jerald Jensen, the Appellant, appealed the Order of Modification entered by the District Court.

Statement of Facts

1. The parties were divorced on or about April 11, 1997 after a trial before the Honorable Gordon J. Low. (R. 90-95).

2. The Court's Findings of Fact reflect the income of the parties wherein the Plaintiff had a monthly income of \$4,400.65 and after deducting his FICA tax of \$143.00 per month, the Court awarded the Respondent alimony of \$2,150.00 per month plus one half of the net proceeds from the farmland rental income and provided further that should the Respondent become employed this Court would retain jurisdiction to review the alimony issue. (R. 87)

3. The Petitioner elected to voluntary retire on December 31, 2003 resulting in a loss of over \$300.00 per month in his monthly pension benefit amount. (Tr Respondent Exhibit 1).

4. The Petitioner presently receives as his portion of his pension plan, the sum of \$1,994.00 per month and in addition, he currently receives \$1,710.00 per month from Social Security for a monthly income from such sources of \$3,704.00 without considering medicare benefits. (R. 313).

5. The Petitioner's bank records which had been obtained previously by Respondent and were received by the Court as an exhibit showed for a seven month

period that the Petitioner's average monthly expenditures / draws from his checking accounts were only \$1,470.00 per month. (TR Respondent Exhibit 4).

6. The Petitioner's exhibit claimed \$3,449.00 as his presently monthly expenses. (TR Petitioner Exhibit 3)

7. The Petitioner when discussing over \$42,291.00 testified he did not put such sum in an IRA and put part of it under his mattress. (TR 72)

8. The Petitioner also testified relative to receiving another \$18,000.00 in November from the sale of real property and that he had been getting payments in that ballpark or more for the last six years. (TR 73-74)

9. The Petitioner also testified his house is paid off but for a \$50.00 per month payment for his car. (TR 63)

10. The Respondent also testified to making gifts to his adult son and daughter and helping them with bills. (TR 67)

11. The Respondent's total income without alimony is \$677.00 received as her portion of Petitioner's pension plan. (TR Respondent Exhibit 2).

12. The Respondent has had almost no income throughout her entire life as referenced by her Social Security Statement. (TR Respondent Exhibit 6)

13. The Respondent testified to the 88 double shock treatments she had around 1985 (TR 130) and after testifying to some of her present problems testified her conditions were getting worse as she was getting older. (TR 134-135)

14. The Respondent's exhibit claimed \$2,327.32.00 as her presently monthly expenses (TR Pet Exhibit 3) but in testimony such sum was corrected to \$2,862.29 based upon an incorrect addition by counsel. (TR 127).

15. The Respondent also testified that she is unable to purchase all her prescriptions and has relied on samples from her physicians when available and there are a number she just can't afford at the present time. (TR 126 -127).

16. The Respondent testified relative to the claimed cohabitation from the early part of the year 2000 that she was a visitor living with Robert Andrews, his sister and his mother in Las Vegas (TR 96).

17. The Respondent further testified relative to her living arrangement that she had her own room with the sister and that's where she kept her clothes and with whom she shared a bathroom. (TR 103)

18. The Respondent never secured a Nevada drivers license or registered her vehicle in Nevada (TR 93, 109).

19. The Respondent testified that the few items she had with her in Las Vegas were kept in the sister's room which was the room she used and that while she was staying there Robert Andrews would fly into Texas where he had a construction business about every two weeks and would be gone five to seven days each time. (TR 115 - 116).

20. The Respondent invested \$49,000.00 for a condo construction and later sought criminal charges be filed against Robert Andrews without success when he failed

to do so. (TR 118).

21. The Respondent being unable to collect and having amassed extensive debt ultimately filed bankruptcy. (TR 115).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court in its memorandum decision when identifying the issue of cohabitation analyzed the facts and applied the leading cases dealing with cohabitation and properly ruled in applying the law to the facts that the Respondent did not cohabit and such finding should be affirmed by this Court.

The trial court again discussed at length the economic situation of both the parties in its memorandum decision and correctly determined that the Petitioner's alimony award should not be terminated and that it should be reduced and such determination of the trial court should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE COURT CORRECTLY APPLIED THE LAW TO THE FACTS IN FINDING THE RESPONDENT DID NOT COHABITATE FOR A SHORT PERIOD OF TIME IN THE SPRING OF 2000 AND SUCH DETERMINATION IS A MIXED QUESTION OF LAW AND FACT AND WHILE THIS COURT DEFERS TO THE TRIAL COURT'S FACTUAL FINDINGS UNLESS THEY ARE CLEARLY ERRONEOUS, THIS COURT REVIEWS ITS ULTIMATE CONCLUSION FOR CORRECTNESS.

In *Sursa v. Sursa*, 2005 UT App 282, the Court of Appeals ruled:

Common residency is "the sharing of a common abode that both parties consider their principal domicile for more than a temporary or brief period of time." *Haddow v. Haddow*, 707 P.2d 669, 672 (Utah 1985). Utah courts have considered various factors to determine whether a couple shares a common residence. These factors include: open access to the residence, possession of a key, time spent at the residence, using the same furniture, keeping clothing and toiletries at the residence, presence of vehicles, shared living expenses, and "otherwise liv [ing] as though they were husband and wife." *Sigg v. Sigg*, 905 P.2d 908, 918 (Utah Ct.App.1995); see also *Pendelton v. Pendelton*, 918 P.2d 159, 160-61 (Utah Ct.App.1996).

In *Haddow v. Haddow*, 707 P.2d 669, 672 (Utah 1985), the Utah Supreme Court held in ruling on the issue of cohabitation for termination of alimony in post divorce proceedings that "common residency" means sharing of common abode that both parties consider their principal domicile for more than a temporary or brief period of time which again is supportive of the findings of the lower court.

The Respondent maintained her home in Brigham City, traveled back home at least once a month during the two to three month period, maintained her Utah drivers license, and registered her vehicle in Utah on one of her trips to Brigham City in March 2000 all of which indicate she considered Utah her domicile. The evidence relating to Robert Andrews also indicates he did not consider Las Vegas his principal domicile for his mother, sister and him were staying in an apartment in Las Vegas and he flew to Texas about every two weeks for five to seven days where he had a construction business.

Neither of the parties were shown by the evidence to have given up their homes or residences in their home states or to have taken any steps to become Nevada residents and the evidence shows that neither considered the Las Vegas apartment a domicile or their

residence. When the Respondent testified she termed herself a visitor which supports the finding of the lower court and her testimony that she was a visitor and as a visitor she did not have a key, did not share in the payment for food or other expenses, had no household personal property on the premises, had only a few clothes with her and kept her makeup and toiletry items under the sink in the bathroom which she shared not with Robert Andrews but with his sister.

The trial court's factual findings are fully supported by the evidence and are not clearly erroneous and should be given deference as should the court's application of correctly applying the law to the facts.

II.

THE COURT COMMITTED NO ERROR IN MODIFYING THE DECREE OF DIVORCE REDUCING THE ALIMONY AWARD FROM \$2150.00 TO \$1500.00 FOR THE TRIAL COURT HAS CONSIDERABLE DISCRETION TO ADJUST AN AWARD OF ALIMONY SHOULD THERE BE A MATERIAL CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE PARTIES FROM THE TIME THE ORIGINAL DECREE OF DIVORCE WAS ENTERED.

In *Bridenbaugh v. Bridenbaugh*, 786 P.2d 241 (Utah App., 1990) the Utah Court of Appeals addressed the responsibility of the trial court in determining the amount of alimony appropriate in any given case and held the trial courts have considerable discretion in making such awards and the award of the trial court will be upheld unless a clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion is shown.

Further in *Bridenbaugh v. Bridenbaugh*, cited supra, the Utah Court of Appeals held:

A party seeking modification of a prior alimony award bears the burden of establishing that a substantial change of circumstances

has occurred which justifies modification. *Id.* In order to reduce or terminate alimony, the trial court "must be persuaded that appellant will be able to support herself at a standard of living to which she was accustomed during the parties' marriage, or that respondent is no longer able to pay." *Fullmer v. Fullmer*, 761 P.2d 942, 951 (Utah Ct.App.1988). This standard is consistent with the purpose of alimony and the criteria used in determining a proper amount. The fundamental purpose of alimony "is to enable the receiving spouse to maintain as nearly as possible the standard of living enjoyed during the marriage and to prevent the spouse from becoming a public charge." *Paffel*, 732 P.2d at 100.

This is obviously the result sought and obtained by the ruling of the trial court when it entered the reduced order of \$1500.00 alimony after considering the ability to pay and the needs of the Respondent.

Additionally, such modification is entitled to a presumption of validity that will only be altered upon a showing of clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion by the trial court. *Throckmorton v. Throckmorton*, 767 P.2d 121 (Utah App. 1988) and the evidence fully supports the award of the trial court.

III

THE TRIAL COURT ANALYZED THE EVIDENCE AND DETERMINED THAT THE RESPONDENT'S CONDITION WAS WORSE THAN IT WAS AT THE TIME OF THE DIVORCE AND PETITIONER PRESENTED NO EVIDENCE TO REBUT SUCH TESTIMONY OR EVIDENCE.

Interestingly, when Petitioner filed his Petition to Modify, he made no allegation that the Respondent was able to work for he has known of her condition throughout their twenty-five year marriage , knew of it throughout their divorce proceeding which culminated in 1997 and has know of it since their divorce.

The Petitioner viewed first hand the physical and mental difficulties effects arising from

the multiple shock treatments Respondent underwent in the 1980's.

Consequently as the moving party attempting to terminate the alimony award Petitioner based his initial petition solely on his retirement which resulted in a reduction of his employment income while attempting to ignore his substantial social security income as opposed to the Respondent who has no work history throughout her entire life and has no entitlement to any social security benefits

The Petitioner must allege and prove changed conditions arising since entry of original decree and failed to do so and there is no basis for suggesting the trial court committed a clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion which is the standard required in *Bridenbaugh v. Bridenbaugh*, 786 P.2d 241 (Utah App.,1990).